



Comodo cWatch MDR Software Version 2.23

# Administrator Guide

Guide Version 2.23.062520

Comodo Security Solutions 1255 Broad Street Clifton, NJ 07013

### **Table of Contents**

1 Introduction to Comodo cWatch MDR	3
1.1 Purchase a License	4
1.2 Log-in to the Admin Console	10
2 The Home Screen	
3 Service Summary	
4 Incidents Overview	16
4.1 Incidents	16
4.2 Threat Summary	19
5 Log Collection Summary	25
6 Threat Communication Graph	29
7 Tickets	
8 Reports	35
9 Notification Settings	39
10 Integrate your Office 365 Account with MDR	40
About Comodo Security Solutions	43

# 1 Introduction to Comodo cWatch MDR

cWatch Managed Detection & Response (MDR) shows threats and behavioral anomalies detected on your network and managed endpoints. Featuring 24/7 threat monitoring and comprehensive reports, cWatch MDR provides the network-wide intelligence admins need to remediate existing threats and anticipate future threats.

Leveraging a combination of technologies deployed at the host and network layers, advanced analytics, threat intelligence, and human expertise in incident investigation with Comodo's 24/7 Security Operations Center (SOC) service, MDR is a comprehensive security solution.

G MDR	≡ Home		sedomedemo 👻 🖸 🌣
<ul> <li>Home</li> <li>Service Summary</li> <li>Incidents Overview</li> <li>Log Collection Summary</li> <li>Threet Communication Oraph</li> <li>Tickets</li> <li>Reporting</li> </ul>	E Home  sedomedemo  Guessian deports: 6  Escalated Tickets: 15  Open Tickets: 0  Incidents: 15  Tickets Notified: 15	TestCustomer1   Unread Reports: 3  Escalated Tickets: 3  Open Tickets: 0  Tickets Notified: 3	sedomedemo       •       1       •         TestCustomer2       •       1       •         •       •       1       •         •       •       •       2         •       •       •       2         •       •       •       0         •       •       •       •         •       •       •       •         •       •       •       •         •       •       •       •         •       •       •       •         •       •       •       •         •       •       •       •         •       •       •       •         •       •       •       •         •       •       •       •         •       •       •       •         •       •       •       •         •       •       •       •         •       •       •       •         •       •       •       •         •       •       •       •         •       •       •       •
	2020 © MDR by Comedo		COMODO

#### Features

- Network Detection & Response
- Endpoint Detection & Response
- Web Detection & Response
- Cloud Detection & Response
- Real-time event monitoring and processing
- Office 365 integration with MDR

#### **Guide Structure**

This guide is intended to take you through the configuration and use of cWatch MDR and is broken down into the following main sections.

- Introduction to Comodo cWatch Network
  - Purchase a License
  - Log-in to the Administrative Console
- The Home Screen
- Service Summary
- Incidents Overview
- Log Collection Summary
- Threat Communication Graph
- Reports



### 1.1 Purchase a License

You can purchase MDR licenses via Comodo One, Comodo Dragon and ITarian portals.

- Open the 'Store' areas of Comodo One, Comodo Dragon and ITarian to subscribe for MDR licenses.
  - Click here to know how to sign up for a free C1 account
  - Click here for details about how to sign up for a free Comodo Dragon account.
  - Click here to know how to sign up for a free ITarian account

There are two variants of the MDR module:

- MDR Force Protect Endpoint MDR receives logs from the Comodo Client Security (CCS) installations on the managed endpoints for processing. Comodo's SOC team will analyze and provide insight about internal threats. Contact your account manager for configuring your endpoints to forward logs to MDR.
- MDR Force Detect Network MDR receives logs from sensors installed on your networks for processing. Comodo's SOC team will analyze and provide insight about threats on your networks. Contact your account manager for provisioning sensors on your networks.

Purchasing is the same for both Comodo One, Comodo Dragon and ITarian. The following tutorial explains how to subscribe via Comodo One.

- Login to your Comodo One / Comodo Dragon / ITarian account
- Click 'Store' on the menu bar
- Locate the 'MDR' tile and click 'Buy'



• The product order page opens:

COMODO Creating Trust Online

Buy New Subscription MDR		
1. Login 2. Comodo ONE Account 3. Configure Subscription 4. Customer Information 5. Payment Options	Login * Login * sudhakar@yopmail.com Password *	
6. Order Summary	Forgot Password	Login

- Your username is pre-populated
- Enter your portal account password then click 'Login'

Buy New Subscription MDR	
1. Login	Subscriptions assigned to this Comodo One Account
2. Comodo ONE Account	You do not have any existing licenses. Please continue purchasing by clicking Buy New button.
3. Configure Subscription	
4. Customer Information	
5. Payment Options	
6. Order Summary	
	Back Activate Selected Buy New

- Click the 'Buy New' button.
- The next step is to configure your subscription package:

. Login	Configure Subsc	ription				
2. Comodo ONE Account	MDR Force Pr	otect Endpoint				
I. Configure Subscription	(Note: This product requ	ires active AEP installation	on. Currently you have 215 AE	P license.)		
. Customer Information	O MDR Force De	etect Network				
. Payment Options						
i. Order Summary	Amount of Users	1	Users			
	1	100	500	1000	10000	1000000
	\$7.50 per user	\$6.25 per user	\$5.00 per user	\$4.00 per us	) er	\$3.25 per user
	Select Period					
	1 month	<b>1</b> year				
	\$7.50 per 1 user fo	or 1 month = \$7.5	0			
	\$7.50					
					P	Next >

- Select the license type.
  - Note- You can buy additional license types after completing the purchase process. See at the end of this section for **more information**.
- Select the number of user licenses you require.
  - The per-user rate depends on the number of users.
- Select the license period. The minimum license period is one month.
- Click 'Next' to continue to customer information.
- Enter your company name, website and address details:

Buy New Subscription MDR	_	
1. Login	Customer Information	
2. Comodo ONE Accounc	Company Name	
3. Configure Subscription	Jane Smith Inc.	
4. Customer Information 5. Payment Options	Company Website	Phone Number *
6. Order Summary		1334567890
	Street Address *	Street Address 2
	City *	Country *
	State or Province	Postal Code *
	Billing Information ✓ The same as Contact Information Terms and Conditions ✓ I have read and agree the <u>End User License/Servi</u>	ice Agreement.
		Back Next >

• Agree to the terms and conditions then click 'Next'

COMODO Creating Trust Online\*

COMODO Creating Trust Online

1. Login	Order Confirmation		
2. Comodo ONE Account	PRODUCT	LICENSE PERIOD	FULL PRICE
4. Customer Information	MDR Force Protect Endpoint (1-99 Endpoints)	1 month	\$7.50
5. Payment Options		TOTAL	\$7.50
6. Order Summary		IVIAL	
	Enter card number  Card Holder Name Expiration Date John Doe	CW What is 12	
		and the second second	
	When paying by credit card, the billing info credit card statement. For credit card verifi name are entered as they appear on your o	rmation should be exactly as cation, please ensure that yo card.	it appears on your ur first and last

- Review your order and enter your payment details
- Click 'Next'
- Your order is submitted and processed. You will receive an order confirmation mail with your license key.
- The order summary page is shown after your order has been processed:

COMODO Creating Trust Online

Buy New Subscription MDR							
1. Login	Congratulations	s! Your order is complet	ted.				
2. Comodo ONE Account 3. Configure Subscription	Order #769528-12						
4. Customer Information 5. Payment Options	Comodo Security Solutions, Inc. 1255 Broad Street Jane Smith Inc. Clifton, NI 07013 Any Street						
6. Order Summary	United States			Any City IN			
	Subscription Details						
	PRODUCT NAME LICENSE KEY						
	MDR Force Protect Endpoint	(1-99 Endpoints)	2c372261-8f82-4d26-9051-3966ae1b20af				
	INVOICE NUMBER	769528-111	SUBSCRIPTION ID	5974AA7FEE			
	Order Details						
	Order Number		769528-12 2020-06-11				
	Order Date						
	Order Total		\$7.50				
	Subscription Expires On		2020-07-12				
	Product Details						
	Number of Units		1				
	Unit Price		\$7.50				
				Print Finish			

- Click 'Print' to make a hard-copy of the order summary.
- Click 'Finish' to complete the purchase process.

#### Purchase additional MDR licenses

- Click 'Management' > 'Applications' on the portal menu bar
- Click the 'MDR' tile
- · Click the 'Subscriptions' tab if not open already
- Click 'Add New Subscription'
- The product purchase page opens.
- Login to your account and complete the purchase process for additional / different license type as explained above.

After you subscribe for MDR, Comodo will continuously review the raw data from your instance and update MDR so it delivers the information most relevant to your needs.



### 1.2 Log-in to the Admin Console

You can open the cWatch MDR admin interface after logging-in to your Comodo One / Comodo Dragon / ITarian account.

- Login to your Comodo One / Comodo Dragon / ITarian account
- Click 'Applications' then 'MDR'

DRAGON PLATFORM	A MANAGE	MENT Y 🖶 REPOR
	Endpoint Manager	
	Patch Management	
Customer: All	RMM	
Hele Astlens	Device Management	
Help Actions	Procedures	
	Endpoint Protection	
H	Service Desk	@=
Help Guides	Secure Internet Gateway	ail Support
	cWatch	
	MDR	
R	Technology Assessment Platform	
$\otimes$	All Applications	
Contact Information		

MDR application opens at the home screen.

G MDR	≡ Home				sedomedemo	- 🗅 🌣
Home Service Summary	sedomedemo		TestCustomer1		TestCustomer2	
Incidents Overview     Log Collection Summary	Unread Reports :	6	Unread Reports :	з	Unread Reports :	2
	Escalated Tickets :	15	Escalated Tickets :	3	Escalated Tickets :	0
Tickets	A Open Tickets :	0	A Open Tickets :	0	A Open Tickets :	0
Reporting	() Incidents :	15	() Incidents :	6	() Incidents :	0
	1 Tickets Notified :	15	1 Tickets Notified :	3	1 Tickets Notified :	0
	2020 © MDR by Corriodo					

Note - MDR will open at the service summary screen if there is only one customer for your account.

# 2 The Home Screen

Managed Detection & Response (MDR) is an integrated suite of managed detection-response technologies comprising Network Detection & Response (NDR), Endpoint Detection & Response (EDR), Web Detection & Response (WDR) and Cloud Detection & Response (CDR).

After you subscribe for MDR, Comodo will continuously review the raw data from your instance and update MDR so it delivers the information most relevant to your needs.

The home screen shows at-a-glance summary of customers' statistics on tiles such as incidents, tickets, reports and so on.

- Click 'Home' on the left if not already open.
  - Note- Home screen is shown if there are more than one customer for the account.

G MDR	≡ Home				sedomedemo	• D 🕸
Hame     Service Summary	sedomedemo		TestCustomer1		TestCustomer2	
Incidents Overview      Log Collection Summary	Unread Reports :	6	Unread Reports :	3	Unread Reports :	2
Threat Communication Graph	Escalated Tickets :	15	Escalated Tickets :	3	Escalated Tickets :	0
Tickets	A Open Tickets :	0	A Open Tickets :	0	A Open Tickets :	0
_	() Incidents :	15	() Incidents :	6	() Incidents :	D
	L Tickets Notified :	15	🌲 Tickets Notified :	3	L Tickets Notified :	0
	L					
	2020 © MDR by Comodo					



Click this button to configure **notification settings**. This area also allows you to configure to collect data from **Office 365 accounts**.

Clicking an item in each tile opens its respective section:

1



- **Customer name** Clicking this will open the service summary screen.
- Unread reports- Opens the reports section.
- Incidents Opens the incidents screen.
- Escalated tickets, open tickets and tickets notified Opens the tickets section.

Click the following links to find out more about each interface:

- The Home Screen
- Service Summary
- Incidents Overview
  - Incidents
  - Threat Summary
- Log Collection Summary
- Threat Communication Graph
- Tickets
- Reports
- Notification Settings
- Integrate your Office 365 Account with MDR

# 3 Service Summary

The service summary shows the total number of event queries processed, the number of alerts and threats, and more.

- Select a customer at top-right or click the customer name on the home screen tile.
  - You can also click 'Service Summary' in the left-menu

COMODO Creating Trust Online\*



The tiles along the top show:

- The number of events processed
- The number of alerts generated
- · The number of incidents minus false-positives
- The number of incidents closed by the SOC team with notifications sent to customers.
- The number of unread reports.

Data is provided for the past 90 days.

✓ Events Processed ()	🛕 AI	erts 🚯	(!) Incidents	0
952,304	52		95	
L Tickets Notified	0	II. Unread Re	ports	0
22		2		

#### **Events Processed**

The number of events in the last 90 days.





• Click the tile to open the log collection summary screen where you can view the events in detail.

#### Alerts

The number of events that matched a rule and created an alert.

	Alerts	6
863		

#### Incidents

The total number of alerts (incidents) minus false-positives for the last 90 days.

()	Incidents	0
323		

• Click the tile to open the **incidents** screen where you can analyze the incidents.

#### Notifications

The number of notifications sent to customers after the SOC team closed an incident



Click the tile to open the tickets section

#### **Unread Reports**

The number of reports that the customer is yet to download and view.



Click the tile to open the reports section

#### **Alert Summary**

Shows alerts versus actual incidents (alerts minus false-positives). Data is for the last 3 months.



- Click the 'Alerts' or 'Incidents' text at the bottom to remove that particular graph. Click on it again to view.
- Place your mouse over a particular day to view more details for that day.

# 4 Incidents Overview

An at-a-glance summary of the incidents and threats on your network. The 'incidents' interface lets you view incidents by type, name and more.

The 'threat summary' dashboard shows attack sources, types of attack, attack origin and destination, and more.

· Click 'Incidents Overview' on the left

뎍 MDR	Incidents Overvi	ew			Te	stCustomer1	- D 🗘
ft Home						2020-03	-24 - 2020-06-22
Service Summary	6	0		1			0
🛟 Incidents Overview	All Incidents	Critical	4 High	Mediun	n Lo	w	Info
Ly incidents							
L→ Threat Summary	Incident ID	Incident N	ame	Incident Action	n 👻 In	cident Category	*
Log Collection Summary							
Threat Communication Graph	Source	Destination	n			SEARCH	CLEAR
Tickets				_			
Reporting	21/06/2020 19: 16	Phishing Detection - Do	Seventy	NOTIFY	WEB TRAFFIC AN OMALIES	Not Selected	(incost
	21/06/2020 19:	Phishing Detection - Do	— High	RECORD	WEB TRAFFIC AN OMALIES	Not Selected	
	21/06/2020 19: 13	Palo Alto - Generic HTTP	ling i	NOTIFY	WEB TRAFFIC AN OMALIES	Not Selected	<b>B</b>

Click the following links for more about each area:

- Incidents
- Threat Summary

### 4.1 Incidents

Shows the top incidents on your network by type, and the severity of those incidents. Further details on each incident are shown in the table in the lower pane.

- Click 'Incidents Overview' > 'Incidents' to open the interface
- Select a customer at top-right

Home						2020-03-	25 - 2020-06-23
Service Summary Incidents Overview	6 All Incidents	0 Critical	4 High	1 Medium	1 Lor	N	0 Info
Threat Summary	Incident ID	Incident N	ame	Incident Action	• In	cident Category	•
Log Collection Summary Threat Communication Graph Tickets	Source	Destinatio	n	_		SEARCH	CLEAR
Reporting	Detection Time ↑ 21/06/2020 19:	Incident Name Phishing Detection - Do	Severity	Incident Action	Incident Category WEB TRAFFIC AN	Classification Not Selected	Ticket
	16 21/06/2020 19: 15	Phishing Detection - Do	High	RECORD	OMALIES WEB TRAFFIC AN OMALIES	Not Selected	
	21/06/2020 19: 13 21/06/2020 19:	Palo Alto - Generic HTTP	High	NOTIFY	WEB TRAFFIC AN OMALIES UNUSUAL NETWO	Not Selected	Ê
	11 21/06/2020 19: 09	Linux sshd SSH Invalid u	Low	RECORD	RK TRAFFIC AUTHENTICATION	Not Selected	
	21/06/2020 19: 08	Endpoint - Malware Dete	High	NOTIFY	MALWARE ACTIVI	Not Selected	Ê
	<b>*</b>			Rows p	per page: 10 💌	1-6 of 6   < <	> >1

- By default, statistics are shown for the past seven days
- To view the data for a different time period, click the date range at the top and choose from the options:

Presets	Sta 20	art Date )20-03	(YYYY-1 3-24	MM-DD	)			End Date 2020-0	(YYYY-N 6-22	IM-DD	)			
Today	<		Ma	rch 20	)20		>	<		Ju	ine 20	20		>
Yesterday	S	М	Т	W	Т	F	S	S	М	Т	W	Т	F	S
ast 30 Davs	1	2		4	5	6	7		1	2	3	4	5	6
Luor oo Duyo		9	10	11	12		14	7	8	9	10	11	12	13
Last 3 Months		16	17	18	19	20	21	14	15	16	17	18	19	20
	22	23	24	25	26	27	28	21	22	23	24	25	26	27
	29	30	31					28	29					

- To view data for a custom period, select from and to dates from the calendars
- Click 'Update'

The top pane shows the incidents by their severity.

COMODO Creating Trust Online

6	0	4	1	1	0
All Incidents	Critical	High	Medium	Low	Info

• Click a tile to view the incidents at the bottom pane

Use the filters to search for particular incidents:

All Incidents	Critical	High	Medium		Low	Info
Incident ID	Inciden	t Name	Incident Action		Incident Category	
Source	Destina	ition			SEARCH	CLEAR
Detection Time 🛧	Incident Name	Severity	Incident Action	Incident Category	Classification	Ticket
21/06/2020 19:	Phishing Detection - Do	High	NOTIFY	WEB TRAFFIC AN OMALIES	4 Not Selected	6

- Enter / select the filter parameter(s) and click 'Search'
- Incidents matching the filter are shown below.
- Click 'Clear' to view all incidents again.

The lower pane shows the incidents for the selected time period:

Source	De	stination					SEARCH	CLEAR
Detection Time	Incident Name 🕹	Severity	Incident Action	Incident Category	Classification	Ticket	Source	Destination
21/06/2020 19: 11	CoinHive In-Browser Min	Medium	RECORD	UNUSUAL NETWO RK TRAFFIC	Not Selected			
21/06/2020 19: 08	Endpoint - Malware Dete	High	NOTIFY	MALWARE ACTIVI TY	Not Selected	Ê		
21/06/2020 19: 09	Linux sshd SSH Invalid u	Low	RECORD	AUTHENTICATION ANOMALIES	Not Selected			
21/06/2020 19: 13	Palo Alto - Generic HTTP	High	NOTIFY	WEB TRAFFIC AN OMALIES	Not Selected	Ê		
21/06/2020 19: 15	Phishing Detection - Do	High	RECORD	WEB TRAFFIC AN OMALIES	Not Selected			
21/06/2020 19: 16	Phishing Detection - Do	High	NOTIFY	WEB TRAFFIC AN OMALIES	Not Selected	Ê		

Click a column header to sort the incidents by alphabetical / ascending / descending order.

- Detection Time The date and time the incident was logged.
- Incident Name The rule label that triggered the incident.
- Severity Incident grade whether critical, high, medium, low or information
- Incident Action The response to the incident per the rule
- Incident Category The incident type. For example, 'Malware activity' or 'Unusual network Traffic'
- Classification Indicates to which the group the rule that triggered the incident is added to.
- Ticket Opens the related incident's tickets interface.
- Source The origin IP address that the rule detected
- Destination The final network / endpoint IP address

#### View incident details

· Click anywhere on an incident row to view even more details like incident ID, admin remarks, and more.

COMODO Creating Trust Online

		/	Summary	
Incident ID	Incident Name	Incident Action	n	
			Incident Name:	Phishing Detectio n - Download EXE or Scripts
Detection Time ↑	Incident Name Sprenty	Incident Action	Incident Id:	eb98f336-2ed9-4 965-8ca7-99b850 5a85c7
21/06/2020 19:	Phishing Detection - Do	NOTIEY	Severity:	High
16	and	Norm	Incident Action:	NOTIFY
21/06/2020 19:	Phishing Detection - Do U High	RECORD		WEB TRAFFIC AN
21/06/2020 19:		NOTION	Incident Category:	OMALIES
13	Paio Aito - Generic HTTP	NUTIEY	Classification:	Not Selected
21/06/2020 19:	CoinHive In-Browser Min Mediu	m RECORD		21/06/2020 19:1
21/06/2020 19:			Detection Time:	6
09	Linux sshd SSH Invalid u Low	RECORD		21/06/2020 13:4
21/06/2020 19:	Endpoint - Malware Dete High	NOTIFY	Last Triggered Date:	6
08				

Click 'Report as False Positive' if you know the incident is not a threat or malicious.

### 4.2 Threat Summary

•

The 'Threat Summary' dashboard shows attack sources, types of attack, attack origin and destination, and more.

- Click 'Incidents Overview' > 'Threat Summary' to open the interface
- Select a customer at top-right



COMODO Creating Trust Online\*

### Comodo cWatch MDR - Administrator Guide

- · Statistics are shown for the past seven days by default.
- Click the date range above the chart to change the time-period shown:



#### **Threat Sources**

Shows the types of threats that occurred over the selected time-period, and the number of sources for each:



- X-axis The name of the threat
- Y-axis Number of sources for each threat category
- Click a bar graph to view its details:

COMODO Creating Trust Online



#### **Threat Distribution Map**

•

• A heat map of the threat sources



Click a country to view details of the threat categories from that country:

COMODO Creating Trust Online



#### **Top 10 Countries**

'Top 10 Countries' shows the details of countries from where both incoming and outgoing threats were recorded. The details are shown by percentage.



• Placing the mouse cursor over a segment will display further details.

Top 10 Countries	0
Canada: 2.82 % France: 3.11 % Count Russia: 3.81 % Germany: 4.35 % Netherlands: 4.65 % China: 10.87 %	try ted States : 62.97 %
<ul> <li>United States</li> <li>Netherlands</li> <li>Russia</li> <li>Canada</li> <li>Republic of Korea</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>China</li> <li>Germany</li> <li>France</li> <li>Italy</li> <li>Indonesia</li> </ul>

• Click a country legend below to enable/ disable its data. For example, click 'China' and this segment will be removed from the pie chart. Click the legend again to view it.

#### Top 10 Threat Types

This pie-chart shows the details of top ten-most incoming and outgoing threat types that were recorded.



Top 10 Threat Typ	bes 🚯
DriveBySrc: 234 Bitcoin_Related: 263 Compromised: 270 DDoSAttacker: 286 Bot: 362	Scanner: 1016 rop : 531 Brute_Forcer: 60
CnC: 509	Drop: 531
Scanner	Brute_Forcer
Drop	CnC
Bot	DDoSAttacker
Compromised	Bitcoin_Related
DriveBySrc	DDoSTarget

Placing the mouse cursor over a segment will display further details.

Click a threat name below to enable/ disable its data. For example, click 'Scanner' and this segment will be
removed from the pie chart. Click the legend again to view it.

#### **Top 10 Internal IPs**

This pie chart shows the details of endpoints from which the threat types originated. The number beside an IP indicates the threat counts that originated from the endpoint.



Placing the mouse cursor over a segment will display further details.

.



• Click an IP to enable/ disable its data. For example, click '192.168.10.222' and this segment will be removed from the pie chart. Click the IP again to view it.

# 5 Log Collection Summary

The log summary screen is a record of logs from all cWatch MDR sources. For example, logs collected from cWatch MDR sensors placed on your network.

Click 'Log Collection Summary' on the left and select a customer at top-right:

9	MDR		■ Log Collect	tion Summary		SOCUA	~ ¤ ¢
*	Home Service Summary		1.00.001				2020-03-24 - 2020-06-22
	Log Collection Summary Threat Communication Graph	Ŷ	Select rows the	at you want to draw charts	DRAW CHARTS	Select rows on left side to draw chart	0
Ê	Tickets Reporting			Event Type NxSensor_conn	Event Count ↓ 373.7k		
				NxSensor_dns	221.9k		
				NxSensor_caploss	148.9k 81.0k		
				NxSensor_notice	36.3k 25.7k		
		203	20 © MDR by Comor	10			Сомодо

- Results are shown for the past seven days by default. Click the date above the table to view a different time frame.
- The summary panel shows the log source and the total number of logs from that source. You can use these logs to generate graphs for the selected time period:

Log Coll	ection Summary	0
Select rows th	nat you want to draw charts	DRAW CHARTS
	Event Type	Event Count√
	NxSensor_conn	1.1m
	NxSensor_dns	835.8k
	NxSensor_files	613.0k
	NxSensor_ssl	157.0k
	NxSensor_weird	33.3k
	NxSensor_http	22.0k
	NxSensor_dhcp	7.3k
	NxSensor_notice	6.8k
	NxSensor_caploss	4.6k
	NxSensor_icmp	3.6k
	NXIDS	2.5k
	NxSensor_dpd	2.3k
	NxSensor_software	1.3k
	NxSensor_pe	1.1k
< 🚺	2 >	DRAW CHARTS

- Event Type Name of the log source. Each source creates logs for different types of event
- Event Count Total number of logs from the source for the selected time-period

#### Log Collection Distribution and Log Source Distribution

- Select one or more log sources in the 'Log Collection Summary' table on the left
- Click 'Draw Charts':



The log collection and source distribution charts are shown on the right:



**Log Collection Distribution** – Line chart. Shows how many logs were generated per-day from your sources, over your selected time period.

**Log Source Distribution** – Pie Chart. Shows the total logs collected from your selected sources, over your selected time period. Each segment represents the total logs from a particular source.

- Click a source name under the chart to remove its data from the graphic. Click the name again to re-add the data.
- Place your mouse cursor over a pie segment or date to view more details:





COMODO Creating Trust Online

# 6 Threat Communication Graph

Click 'Threat Communication Graph' on the left and select a customer at top-right

- This graph shows how external IPs attempted to communicate with internal IPs to deliver specific types of threat.
  - Click a threat category on the right to reveal the internal addresses targeted by that type of attack.
  - Next, click an internal address to see the IPs that contacted it to try and deliver the threat.
- The color-tone of the circle indicates the volume of communications. White = low, yellow = medium, red = high.



- · Statistics are shown for the past seven days by default
- Click the date above the chart if you want to view a different time-frame:

COMODO Creating Trust Online

Presets	Sta 20	rt Date 20-03	bate(YYYY-MM-DD) I-03-24					End Date 2020-0	(YYYY-1 6-22	/IM-DD	)			
Today	<		Ma	arch 20	020		>	<		Ju	ine 20	20		>
Yesterday	S	М	Т	W	т	F	S	s	М	Т	W	т	F	S
Last 30 Davs	1	2		4	5	6	7		1	2	3	4	5	6
Last 50 Days		9	10	11	12		14	7	8	9	10	11	12	13
Last 3 Months		16	17	18	19	20	21	14	15	16	17	18	19	20
	22	23	24	25	26	27	28	21	22	23	24	25	26	27
	29	30	31					28	29					

#### View threats in tree view

· Click a threat to the view the details of affected internal IPs



- · Click an internal IP to view details of threat from blacklisted IPs
- Node color tones range from white to red depicting the intensity of threat communication
- Click again to collapse the tree view

# 7 Tickets

Click 'Tickets' on the left menu

- Tickets are a two-way communication system via the MDR interface between customer and Comodo's security operations center (SOC) team. For example, if any threats or anomalies are found on your network, SOC team raises a ticket so customer can view and attend to the problem.
- Similarly, customer can create a ticket, for example, request the SOC team to check for particular threats.

9	MDR	Ξ	Tickets						Tes	stCustomer1	- D 💠
A	Home									2020-03-	25 - 2020-06-23
55	Service Summary		Λ		0		2		0		2
¢	Incidents Overview	~	All		Open		Close	d	Re-Opened		scalated
-	Log Collection Summary										
~	Threat Communication Graph		OREATE NE	W TICKET							
	Tickets		Childrift He								
11	Reporting		Ticket ID			Incident ID			Subject		
			Severity		-	Reported B	у	•	[	SEARCH	CLEAR
			Ticket Id	Subject			Severity	Reported By	Reported At	Last Update 🛧	Status
			1044	Endpoint malware			High	Customer	23/06/2020 12:48	23/06/2020 1 3:47	Ck
			1041	Endpoint - Malwar	e Detected		High	SOC	21/06/2020 19:08	23/06/2020 1 2:52	Ck
			1043	Phishing Detection	n - Download EX	E or Scri_	High	SOC	21/06/2020 19:17	21/06/2020 1 9:17	Pending
			1042	Palo Alto - Generic	HTTP Cross Si	te Script	High	SOC	21/06/2020 19:14	21/06/2020 1 9:14	Pending
		Ę	1					Rows per pa	ige: <u>10 <del>v</del></u>	1-4 of 4   < <	> >
		2020	O MDR by Comod	D							соморо

- By default, ticket details are shown for the past seven days
- To view the data for a different time period, click the date range at the top and choose from the options:

COMODO Creating Trust Online

Presets	Sta	rt Date 20-03	late(YYYY-MM-DD) I-03-24					End Date 2020-0	(YYYY-N 6-22	/M-DD	)			
Today	<		Ма	rch 20	020		>	<		Ju	ine 20	20		>
Yesterday	S	М	т	W	т	F	S	S	М	Т	W	т	F	S
Last 30 Davs	1	2		4	5	6	7		1	2	3	4	5	6
Last of Days		9	10	11	12		14	7	8	9	10	11	12	13
Last 3 Months		16	17	18	19	20	21	14	15	16	17	18	19	20
	22	23	24	25	26	27	28	21	22	23	24	25	26	27
	29	30	31					28	29					

- To view data for a custom period, select from and to dates from the calendars
- Click 'Update'

The top pane shows the tickets by their statuses.



Click a tile to view the respective type of tickets at the bottom pane

- Open Number of tickets whose issues are not yet addressed.
- Closed Issues resolved and tickets closed by the customer or the SOC team.
- Re-opened Closed tickets that are opened again by the customer or the SOC team.
- Escalated Tickets can be escalated by SOC team only. This may be to remind customers to attend to
  issues immediately.

Use the filters to search for particular tickets:

initial and the second second	CREATE NEV	V ТІСКЕТ							
	Ticket ID			Incident I	D		Subject		
	Severity		•	Reported	Ву	~		SEARCH	IR
	Ticket Id	Subject			Severity	Reported By	Reported At	Last Update 🛧	Status
The second second	1044	Endpoint malware			High	Customer	23/06/2020 12:48	23/06/2020 1 3:47	C

- Enter / select the filter parameter(s) and click 'Search'
- Tickets matching the filter are shown below.

• Click 'Clear' to view all tickets again.

The lower pane shows the tickets for the selected time period:

Ticket ID		Incident ID			Subject		
Severity	-	Reported By		•		SEARCH	CLEAR
Ticketlid	Subject	Severity	Reported By	Reported At.	Last Update 🛧	Status	Details
1044	Endpoint malware	High	Customer	28/06/2020 10:18	23/06/2020 11:17	Closed	8
1041	Endpoint - Malware Detected	High	SOC	21/06/2020 16:38	23/06/2020 10:22	Closed	8
1043	Phishing Detection - Download EXE or Scripts	High	800	21/06/2020 16:47	21/06/2020 16:47	Pending Customer	8
1042	Palo Alto - Deneric HTTP Cross Site Scripting Attempt	High	800	21/06/2020 16:44	21/06/2020 16:44	Pending Customer	<u>a</u>
					Rows per page:	10 💌 1-4 of 4 🖂	< > >1

Click a column header to sort the tickets by alphabetical / ascending / descending order.

- Ticket ID Auto generated ticket reference number
- Subject The ticket subject that was entered while creating the ticket
- Severity Ticket urgency grade. Possible values are:
  - All
  - Info
  - Low
  - Medium
  - High
  - Critical
- **Reported by** Indicates who created the ticket. It can be SOC team or the customer.
- Reported at Date and time of ticket creation.
- Last update Date and time of the latest response to the ticket
- Status Indicates the latest position of the ticket. Possible values are:
  - Closed This can be done either by the customer or the SOC team
  - Pending Customer Ticket waiting for response from the customer
  - Pending SOC Ticket waiting for response from the SOC team
  - Reopened A closed ticket is opened again by SOC or by the customer
- Details Click this to view the history of the ticket.

#### Create a ticket

Click 'Create New Ticket'

Create New Ticket Subject 4 Severity High CREATE NEW TICKET Description Ticket ID 0 / 5000 Severity Attachments: \* Maximum 5 files are allowed to be uploaded with 20MB max. size limit per file. Ticket Id Subject Endpoint m CLOSE

- Subject Enter an appropriate label for the ticket.
- Description State your requirements in detail not exceeding 5000 characters.
- Attachments Upload any reference files if required. Click 'Select Files', navigate to the location and click 'Open'.
- Click 'Save'

The ticket is created and the status shows as 'Pending SOC'. The SOC team will analyze your request and reply to the ticket. You can either close and respond again.

#### **Ticket Details**

• Click the ticket icon in the 'Details' column

COMODO Creating Trust Online

G Hor	≡ Tickets				TestCustomer1	× D 🗘
E Tickets				TestCustomer1	* D 💠	
Ticket Details	۴			CLOSE TICKET	+ BACK	
Subject	Phishing Detection - Download	EXE or Scripts		TICKET HISTORY	ATTACHMENTS	CLEAR
Ticket ID:	1043	Incident ID:	eb981336-2401-1055-8ca7-9958505a85c7		·	
Reported at:	21/06/2020 19:17	Last Update:	21/06/2020 19:17			Details
Severity:	High	Ticket Status:	Pending Customer	Ticket status cha	nged to Escalated by 20 19-17	
Reported By:	800					c 🔒
Description:	A possibly malicious executable	e content «File Name» is detected de	ownloaded in the network.	Ticket has been of	reated by SDC at	
Resolution:	Detection of malicious content	which is related to Phishing.		21/06/2020 19(1)		
Ticket Replies						: < > >!
No reply yet.						COMOD
© MDR by Comodo					сомодо	

- Ticket Details The top pane shows the ticket details such as ticket subject, ticket ID and more.
- Ticket Replies Shows responses from the customer and the SOC team.
- Reply to Ticket Enter your response and if you want to upload any files, click 'Select Files' in the 'Attachments' section below and complete the upload process.
- Reply Click this button at the bottom to respond to the SOC team.
- Close Ticket Click this button at top-right to end the ticket issue.
- Re-open Shows only for closed tickets. Click this button to open a closed ticket.
- Ticket History Shows the details of the ticket, such as who created the ticket, replies from the customer and SOC team.
- Attachments Shows the details of uploaded files.
- Back Click this to return to the tickets screen.

# 8 Reports

Click 'Reporting' on the left menu

• MDR provides a variety of reports such as endpoint compliance, weekly report and more.

뎍 MDR	=			TestCu	ustomer1	- D 💠
+ Home					2020-03	26 - 2020-06-24
Incidents Overview      V     Log Collection Summary	Report Type 👻	SEARCH CLEAR				
Threat Communication Graph     Tickets	Report Name EDR_OPERATIONAL_REPORT_14-06-2020_ 20-06-2020	Report Type EDR Operational Report	Reported At 4 22/06/2020 15: 51	Period 14/06/2020 - 20/0 6/2020	Status	View Report
- Hepoteng	INCIDENT_REPORT_07-06-2020_13-06-20 20	Incident Report	21/06/2020 19: 02	07/06/2020 - 13/0 6/2020	$\sim$	۵
	ENDPOINT_COMPLIANCE_REPORT_21-06 -2020_21-06-2020	Endpoint Compliance Report	21/06/2020 19:	21/06/2020 - 21/0 6/2020	$\sim$	۵
	WEEKLY_REPORT_10-05-2020_16-05-2020	Weekly Report	21/06/2020 18: 57	10/05/2020 - 16/0 5/2020		0
	WEEKLY_REPORT_03-05-2020_09-05-202 0	Weekly Report	21/06/2020 18: 56	03/05/2020 - 09/0 5/2020	$\geq$	٥
			Rows per	page: 10 👻 1	-5 of 5 I < K	<u>э</u> эг
	2020 @ MDR by Comodo					COMODO

- By default, reports are shown for the past seven days
- To view reports for a different time period, click the date range at the top and choose from the options:

Presets	Sta 20	art Date )20-03	Date(YYYY-MM-DD) 0-03-24						End Date 2020-0	(YYYY-N 6-22	IM-DD)	)			
Today	<		Ma	rch 20	020		>		<		Ju	ine 20	20		>
Yesterday	S	М	т	W	Т	F	S		S	М	Т	W	Т	F	S
Last 30 Davs	1	2		4	5	6	7			1	2	3	4	5	6
Last of Days		9	10	11	12		14		7	8	9	10	11	12	13
Last 3 Months		16	17	18	19	20	21		14	15	16	17	18	19	20
	22	23	24	25	26	27	28		21	22	23	24	25	26	27
	29	30	31						28	29					

- To view data for a custom period, select from and to dates from the calendars
- Click 'Update'

Use the filters to search for particular reports:

COMODO Creating Trust Online

Report Type 👻	SEARCH				
Report Name	Report Type	Reported At 🗸	Period	Status	View Report
EDR_OPERATIONAL_REPORT_14-06-2020_ 20-06-2020	EDR Operational Report	22/06/2020 15:5 1	14/06/2020 - 20/06 /2020		٥
INCIDENT REPORT 07-06-2020 13-06-20					

- Select the report type click 'Search'
- Reports matching the filter are shown below.
- Click 'Clear' to view all reports again.

The lower pane shows the reports for the selected time period:

Report Type 👻	SEARCH				
Report Name	Report Type	Reported At 🗸	Period	Status	View Report
EDR_OPERATIONAL_REPORT_14-06-2020_ 20-06-2020	EDR Operational Repor t	22/06/2020 15:5 1	14/06/2020 - 20/06 /2020		۵
INCIDENT_REPORT_07-06-2020_13-06-20 20	Incident Report	21/06/2020 19: 02	07/06/2020 - 13/0 6/2020	$\sim$	0
ENDPOINT_COMPLIANCE_REPORT_21-06- 2020_21-06-2020	Endpoint Compliance Report	21/06/2020 19:0 0	21/06/2020 - 21/06 /2020		٥
WEEKLY_REPORT_10-05-2020_16-05-2020	Weekly Report	21/06/2020 18:5 7	10/05/2020 - 16/05 /2020		6
WEEKLY_REPORT_03-05-2020_09-05-202 0	Weekly Report	21/06/2020 18: 56	03/05/2020 - 09/0 5/2020	$\geq$	0
		Rows pe	r page: 10 💌 1	l-5of5  < <	> >1

Click a column header to sort the reports by alphabetical / ascending / descending order.

- Report Name The report label
- Report Type Report category
- Reported at Report generated date and time
- Period Indicates the 'from' and 'to' days for which the report is generated
- Status Whether the report is downloaded or not. Closed envelope icon indicates the report is not downloaded.
- View Report- Click this to save the report.

#### Download a report

• Click the arrow in the report row that you want to save:

COMODO Creating Trust Online

Report N	You have chosen t WEEKLY_REF which is: Min	o open: PORT_03-05-2020_09 crosoft Excel Workshee	-05-2020.xlsx et (18.5 KB)		Reported At	Period +	Status	View Report
WEEKLY 0	from: https:/	//s3.amazonaws.com			21/06/2020 18: 56	03/05/2020 - 09/0 5/2020	$\simeq$	
WEEKLY	What should Firef	ox do with this file? LibreOffice Calc (def	ault)	~	21/06/2020 18:5 7	10/05/2020 - 16/05 /2020		3
INCIDE 20	● <u>S</u> ave File				21/06/2020 19: 02	07/06/2020 - 13/0 6/2020	$\sim$	0
EDR_OP 20-06-2(			0×	Creat	22/06/2020 15:5 1	14/06/2020 - 20/06 /2020		0
ENDPOII 2020_21-0	6-2020		Report	Cancel	21/06/2020 19:0 0	21/06/2020 - 21/06 /2020		0

• Click 'OK' to save the report.

The following report types are generated in MDR.

Report Type	Frequency	Description
Weekly report	Weekly	Report of actionable incidents, unusual network traffic, threat types, log collection summary and more.
EDR operational report	Weekly	The report contains continuous monitoring and response service outputs for advanced threat protection of endpoints.
Dashboard report	On-demand	Total events received from sources such as domain controller, Palo Alto, web proxy, ProffPoint and so on.
Endpoint compliance report	Weekly	Details such as total number of enrolled devices, last reporting status, Comodo anti-virus product version status, new malwares detected in past one week and so on.
Executive report	Monthly	This report includes work summary like investigated and notified incident details and log collection details.
		Report also contains some analytics on data collected from customer and provides summary about overall security level of the customer.
Threat intelligence report	Monthly	A report of vulnerabilities analyzed by the SOC team on all customer products. It includes the latest threats analyzed as well as the result of SOC checks in the customer networks.
Incident report	Weekly	Contains information about network and system security.

# 9 Notification Settings

• Configure who should receive alert emails sent by Comodo SOC team. For examples, incident notifications are sent to the selected users.

Click the settings icon at top-right to open the screen:

9	MDR	Settings (Last three months)		SOCUA - C 🔅
<b>†</b>	Home	User Notification Settings		0
	Service Summary	User Name 个	Contact Email	Receive Notification
	Log Collection Summary	coatchankara_come	coalch-rehearingsconeds.com	
~	Threat Communication Graph	mdrowshchuse@popmal.com 	märovatshusangyspinal.com	
Û	Tickets		Brows par nana:	10 + 13//3 (C ( ) )
83	Reporting			SAVE
		Cloud Security Settings		
		Integrate your Office 365 account	R gang et	Office 365

Admins and staff in your portal account (Comodo One, Dragon Platform and ITarian) are shown in the user list.

- User Name User ID of the staff
- **Contact Email** Email address provided at the time of enrolling the staff. Notification mails are sent to this address.
- Receive Notification Enable / disable for email notification.

Click 'Save' after selecting the users. A confirmation message is shown:

User Notification Setting is updated successfully.

# 10 Integrate your Office 365 Account with MDR

You can integrate your Office 365 account with MDR so any threats and behavioral anomalies are detected. Once integrated, our SOC team analyzes data logs from your Office 365 account for malware activity and other anomalies.

You have to first configure your Azure AD application and MDR so as to collect data.

#### **Configuration Steps**

- Step 1 Create an API integration application within registry
- Step 2 Create security credentials for registered application
- Step 3 Add permissions for the registered application
- Step 4 Configure MDR with Azure application registration attributes (Tenant Id, Client Id, Secret Key)

#### Step 1 - Create an API Integration Application within Registry

- Log into your Azure account (https://portal.azure.com).
- Navigate to App registrations and create a new app by clicking '+ New registration'
- Fill application details as shown below:

← → C <sup>*</sup> (
■ Microsoft Azure P Search resources, services, and docs (G+/)
Home > Biombee   App registrations > Register an application
Register an application
* Name
The user-facing display name for this application (this can be changed later).
comodo-mdr 🗸
Supported account types
Who can use this application or access this API?
Accounts in this organizational directory only (Biombee only - Single tenant)
Accounts in any organizational directory (Any Azure AD directory - Multitenant)
Accounts in any organizational directory (Any Azure AD directory - Multitenant) and personal Microsoft accounts (e.g. Skype, Xbox)
Help me choose
Redirect URI (optional)
We'll return the authentication response to this URI after successfully authenticating the user. Providing this now is optional and it can be changed later, but a value is required for most authentication scenarios.
e.g. nttps://myapp.com/auth
By proceeding, you agree to the Microsoft Platform Policies 🖻
Renister
ACCUMANT AND A DECEMBER OF

- Name: comodo-mdr (or any other suitable label)
- Supported account types: Choose "Accounts int this organizational directory only"
- Click 'Register'

Note down the Application (client) ID and Directory (tenant) ID.

#### Step 2 - Create Security Credentials for Registered Application

Click 'Certificates & Secrets' on the left

•

Microsoft Azure	,P. Search resources, services, and docs (G+/)	G,	P		
Home > Biombee   App registrations >	comodo-mdr   Certificates & secrets	 		 	
🔶 comodo-mdr   Certifica	tes & secrets				
	Add a client secret  Description  Expires In 1 year In 2 years				
Certificates & secrets	Never				
Token configuration API permissions	Add Cancel				
Expose an API     Owners     Roles and administrators (Previ     Manifest	Client secrets A secret string that the application uses to prove its identity when requesting a token. Also can be referred to as application password.           + New client secret           Description         Expires         Value				
Support + Troubleshooting           Image: Support + Troubleshooting           Image: New support request	No client secrets have been created for this application.				

- Click '+New client secret'
- Create a secret insert description for the key, select expiration of 'Never', then click 'Add' (only then will the key/secret be generated)
- Copy the new client secret value.

#### Step 3 - Add Permissions for the Registered Application

- Click 'API Permissions' on the left then 'Add a Permission'
- Click 'Microsoft Graph' and select 'Application Permissions'
- Add permissions as shown below:

V Microsoft Graph (4)			
AuditLog.Read.All	Application	Read all audit log data	Yes
IdentityRiskEvent.Read.All	Application	Read all identity risk event information	Yes
SecurityEvents.Read.All	Application	Read your organization's security events	Yes
User.Read.All	Application	Read all users' full profiles	Yes

- Click 'Add a permission' again and select 'Office 365 Management API' and toggle 'Application Permissions'.
- Add permissions as shown below:

Γ	✓ Office 365 Management APIs (6)			
	ActivityFeed.Read	Application	Read activity data for your organization	Yes
	ActivityFeed.ReadDlp	Application	Read DLP policy events including detected sensitive data	Yes
	ActivityReports.Read	Application	Read activity reports for your organization	Yes
	ActivityReports.Read	Application	Read activity reports for your organization	Yes
	ThreatIntelligence.Read	Application	Read threat intelligence data for your organization	Yes
	ThreatIntelligence.Read	Application	Read threat intelligence data for your organization	Yes
<b>—</b>				

# Step 4 - Configure MDR with Azure Application Registration Attributes (Tenant Id, Client Id, Secret Key)

- Log into MDR Customer Portal.
- Click "Settings" at the top left of the screen and scroll down to 'Cloud Security Settings'

Settings			TestCustomer1 - 12			
		Rows per page: 10	1-10 05 14 1< < >>			
			SAVE			
Cloud Security Setting	gs 🖌					
Integrate your Office 365 account			Office 365			
Fill in the below fields to register your Office 365 account.		₩∃× <u></u> ₽ <b>₽</b> ₽ <b>₽</b> ₩ <b>₽</b> ₩				
Client ID	Tenant ID	Secret	Кеу			

- Enter your client ID, tenant ID (generated in step 1) and secret key (generated in step 2) into the respective fields.
- Click "Register Your Account"

That's it, your Office 365 cloud account is integrated with MDR. Contact your Comodo account manager for support if you have any trouble integrating your cloud account with MDR.

# About Comodo Security Solutions

Comodo Security Solutions is a global innovator of cybersecurity solutions, protecting critical information across the digital landscape. Comodo provides complete, end-to-end security solutions across the boundary, internal network and endpoint with innovative technologies solving the most advanced malware threats. With over 80 million installations of its threat prevention products, Comodo provides an extensive suite of endpoint, website and network security products for MSPs, enterprises and consumers.

Continual innovation and a commitment to reversing the growth of zero-day malware, ransomware, data-breaches and internet-crime distinguish Comodo Security Solutions as a vital player in today's enterprise and home security markets.

### About Comodo Cybersecurity

In a world where preventing all cyberattacks is impossible, Comodo Cybersecurity delivers an innovative cybersecurity platform that renders threats useless, across the LAN, web and cloud. The Comodo Cybersecurity platform enables customers to protect their systems and data against even military-grade threats, including zero-day attacks. Based in Clifton, New Jersey, Comodo Cybersecurity has a 20-year history of protecting the most sensitive data for both businesses and consumers globally. For more information, visit comodo.com or our **blog**. You can also follow us on **Twitter** (@ComodoDesktop) or **LinkedIn**.

1255 Broad Street

Clifton, NJ 07013

United States

Tel: +1.877.712.1309

Tel:+1.888.551.1531

https://www.comodo.com

Email: EnterpriseSolutions@Comodo.com